
Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
200 WEST LOUDON AVE, CONFERENCE ROOM 110 
LEXINGTON, KY 40508 

August 21, 2019 
5:00 pm. 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

AGENDA......................................................................................................................... 1 

MINUTES ................................................................................................................... 2-5 

RESOLUTION 2019-17 .............................................................................................. 6-7 

RESOLUTION 2019-18 .............................................................................................. 8-9 

RESOLUTION 2019-19 .......................................................................................... 10-11 

TITLE VI PROGRAM PLAN UPDATE .................................................................... 12-21 

TITLE VI PROGRAM PLAN ................................................................................... 22-62 

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT ...................................................................63-70 



 Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

200 WEST LOUDON AVE, CONFERENCE ROOM 110 
LEXINGTON, KY 40508 

August 21, 2019 
5:00 p.m. 

AGENDA 

I. Call to order 5:00 

II. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes
a. July 17, 2019 Meeting

5:05 — 5:10 

III. Public Comment on Agenda Items / Public Hearing 5:10 — 5:20 

IV. Chair’s Report 5:20 — 5:25 

V. Action Items
a. Resolution 2019-17 – Office 365 Migration
b. Resolution 2019-18 – Technology Consulting Services Pricing
c. Resolution 2019-19 – Extension of Management Contract

5:25 — 5:45 

VI. Change Order

VII. Old Business
a. Review of Title VI of Civil Rights Act Program update
b. Update on possible Greyhound Partnership

5:45 — 6:05 

VIII. New Business 6:05 — 6:10 

IX. Lextran Monthly Performance Report 6:10 — 6:25 

X. Proposed Agenda Items
a. Presentation on the US 27 Corridor Study by the  Lexington Area

Metropolitan Planning Organization
b. Review of Fiscal Year 2019 Audit
c. Resolution for Architectural and Engineering Services Contract

6:25 — 6:30 

XI. Closed Session

XII. Adjournment 6:35 

Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 
1



 Minutes 
Page 1 of 4 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MINUTES 
July 17, 2019 

MEMBERS PRESENT 
Christian Motley, Chair 
George Ward, Vice Chair  
Elias Haddad 
Marci Krueger-Sidebottom 
Joseph Smith  
Peggy Henson 

MEMBERS ABSENT 
Rick Christman 
Adrienne Thakur 

STAFF PRESENT  
Carrie Butler, General Manager   
Jill Barnett, Assistant General Manager 
Nikki Falconbury, Director of Finance 
John Givens, Director of Risk Management 
Fred Combs, Director of Planning 
Keith Srutowski, Director of Procurement  
Jim Barrett, Director of Maintenance 
Jason Dyal, Director of Operations 
Matt Winkler, Planning Coordinator 
Alan Jones, IT Coordinator 
Chris Withrow, Parts Manager 

   Jacob Walbourn, McBrayer Law Firm, Board Attorney 

OTHERS PRESENT 
Joseph David, Transportation Planner, LFUCG MPO 
Matthew Gidcomb, KFTC - Kentuckians for the Commonwealth 
Arlen Sandlin, Integrated Engineering 

I. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Motley called the July 17, 2019 meeting of Lextran’s Board of Directors to order at 5:00 p.m. 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 

2



 Minutes 
Page 2 of 4 

Mr. Motley called for a motion to approve the minutes from June 19, 2019. Ms. Henson made a 
motion to approve the minutes, and it was seconded by Mr. Smith.  The motion carried 
unanimously.  

III. PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment. 

IV. CHAIR’S REPORT

There was no chair’s report. 

V. ACTION ITEMS

Resolution – 2019-16 – Contract for Rebuilt Engines: Ms. Butler reviewed the resolution that 
authorizes and directs the General Manager to execute an agreement with Cummins Inc., to repair 
and rebuild engines in a timely manner and at a reasonable cost. Cummins Inc. received the 
highest ranking and is recommended to be awarded the contract per terms of their proposal and 
RFP 1909. The Board raised questions on normal turnaround time for rebuilding engines and cost 
of rebuilding engines versus purchasing new engines. Jim Barrett, Director of Operations, spoke 
about turnaround time and cost of rebuilt engines and new engines. Mr. Motley called for a 
motion. Ms. Henson made a motion and Mr. Haddad seconded. The motion carried unanimously.  

Officer Elections – Ms. Butler introduced the need for officer elections and Mr. Walbourn 
explained the process for officer elections. Officer elections are to be held every July for the 
positions of Chair and Vice Chair with the position of Secretary/Treasurer being designated to 
Lextran staff. Mr. Walbourn answered questions from the Board about officer elections. Ms. 
Henson recommended that Mr. Motley remain Chair and Mr. Ward remain Vice Chair for Fiscal 
Year 2020. Mr. Motley called for a motion. Ms. Henson made a motion and Mr. Haddad seconded. 
The motion carried unanimously. 

VI. CHANGE ORDER

There were no change orders to report. 

VII. OLD BUSINESS

Mr. Srutowski gave a presentation on the Lextran Procurement Policy and the procedures and 
processes surrounding how Lextran purchases goods and services. (See attached presentation) 

Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 
3



 Minutes 
Page 3 of 4 

He answered questions from Board members as needed. Ms. Butler discussed procurement and 
the upcoming triennial review. She also noted that with the new website design, RFPs will be 
easier for potential bidders to find. Disclosure statements requiring Board members to disclose 
any real or perceived conflict of interest were distributed for Board members to sign. 

Mr. Combs gave a presentation on Lextran’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) goals. The 
setting of the annual DBE goal is in process and will then be submitted to the Federal Transit 
Admisntration for that federal fiscal year, which ends in October. Mr. Combs answered questions 
from Board members regarding calculation of percentages, participants in previous DBE events 
Lextran has hosted, etc. Mr. Motley requested a more in-depth presentation on DBE at a future 
date. 

Ms. Butler had a follow-up call with Greyhound. She also met with LexPark about the space at the 
Transit Center. Next will be a tour of the Transit Center with LexPark, and then a meeting with Mr. 
Walbourn regarding contractual issues.  

VIII. NEW BUSINESS

There is no new business to report. 

IX. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

Ms. Butler reviewed the General Manager’s report and Key Performance Indicators, found on 
pages 24-31 of the July 17, 2019 board packet. She debuted the new format for KPIs and the 
Monthly Performance Report based on Lextran’s Key Pillars. Ms. Barnett spoke about the bus 
wrap design contest, fixed route ridership, charter bus service, preventable accidents, upcoming 
RFPs, and Mr. Dyal’s recent promotion to Director of Operations. 

Ms. Falconbury presented the financial statement, found on pages 22-23 of the July 17, 2019 
board packet. June financials have not yet been audited, so they may change. The audited 
version will be presented at the September Board Meeting. Diesel was $30,000 under budget 
overall for the year. Diesel is showing at $2.22 and CNG is at $1.30. 

X. PROPOSED AGENDA ITEMS

• Update from the Lexington Area Metropolitan Planning Organization (LAMPO) on the
Request for Proposals they released in conjunction with Land Use Planning Department at
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government on a corridor study and transportation
improvements along US 27. LAMPO will take the lead on the project and Lextran is a key
partner in the project.

Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 
4



 Minutes 
Page 4 of 4 

• Upcoming Resolutions: Architectural and Engineering Services, Technology Consulting
services, and Office 365 Migration to Cloud based system.

• Title VI update will take place at the August Board Meeting

• Audit report will take place at the September Board Meeting

• PVA David O’Neil will be presenting at the Board Meeting in October about property value
trends in the area.

• Presentation on DBE will take place at the November Board Meeting.

XI. CLOSED SESSION

Ms. Henson made a motion to enter into closed session pursuant to KRS 61.810(1)(c) so that we 
may have discussions of proposed or pending litigation against or on behalf of the agency. I 
invite legal counsel, the general manager, the assistant general manager, the director of finance, 
and the director of purchasing to remain. Mr. Ward seconded the motion. The motion was 
approved unanimously, and members of the public and Lextran’s staff were excused. The Board 
of Directors, Mr. Walbourn, Ms. Butler, Ms. Barnett, Ms. Falconbury, and Mr. Srutowski entered 
into closed session at 6:13 p.m. 

The Board of Directors took no action while in closed session. 

Mr. Ward made a motion to return to open session and Mr. Haddad seconded. The motion was 
approved unanimously, and the Board of Directors returned to open session at 6:30 p.m. 

XII. ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Motley called for a motion to adjourn the July 17, 2019 meeting of Lextran’s Board of 
Directors. Ms. Henson made a motion and Mr. Motley seconded. The meeting adjourned by 
consensus at 6:30 p.m. 

Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 
5



 Resolution 2019-17 
Page 1 of 2 

August 21, 2019 

TO:              The Board of Directors 

FROM:         Carrie Butler, General Manager 

SUBJECT:  Resolution to Award a Contract for Office 365 Migration 

Attached is a resolution requesting authority to award a contract for an Office 365 Migration. Funds for these 
services and licenses are budgeted in the capital and operating budget under Technology and Information 
Technology line items.   

RFP 1911 was issued June 3, 2019 with proposals received on July 18, 2019. A staff evaluation committee 
reviewed and approved the proposals for compliance and responsiveness. Responsive proposals were received 
from eight (8) qualified proposers: 

• Advanced Business Solutions
• Cloud Navigator
• Innova Consulting Group
• Integration Partners
• Next Century Technologies
• Orchestrate Technologies
• Softchoice
• Team Logic IT

An evaluation committee ranked the proposals received. Next Century Technologies received the highest ranking 
and is recommended to be awarded the contract per the terms of their proposal and RFP 1911. 

Pricing will be as follows: 
• Migration per mailbox – $110.00 (One-time fee, estimated 240 mailboxes to migrate = $26,400)
• License costs (total cost not to exceed $30,750 for the first year)

o Office 365 Enterprise E3 – $20.00 per user per month
o Office 365 Business Premium – $12.50 per user per month
o Office 365 Enterprise E1 – $8.00 per user per month
o Office 365 Online Exchange Plan 1 – $4.00 per user per month
o Office 365 Advanced Threat Protection – $5.00 per user per month
o SaaS Protection (Office 365 backup) – $675 per month for up to 250 mailboxes
o Office 365 archiving – $3 per user per month

The term of the contract awarded will be for two (2) years with three (3) options for an additional year. 

If you have any questions or wish to review RFP 1911 or the proposal from Next Century Technologies, please 
contact me at 255-7756. 

Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 
6



 Resolution 2019-17 
Page 2 of 2 

RESOLUTION 

TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE LEXINGTON-FAYETTE 
URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT 

MOTION:  ____________________________     SECOND:   ___________________________ 

DATE:    August 21, 2019       RESOLUTION NO.:  2019-17 

WHEREAS, the Transit Authority of the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government (Lextran) issued 
RFP 1911 for the provision of an Office 365 migration, and; 

WHEREAS, RFP 1911 resulted in responsive proposals from eight (8) qualified proposers, and; 

WHEREAS, the proposal from Next Century Technologies was the highest ranked proposal; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority of the 
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government (Lextran) hereby authorizes and directs the General Manager to 
execute a contract with Next Century Technologies for the provision of an Office 365 migration as per the 
terms of RFP 1911 and the proposal submitted by Next Century Technologies, which are incorporated herein 
by reference. Pricing will be as follows: 

• Migration per mailbox – $110.00 (One-time fee, estimated 240 mailboxes to migrate = $26,400)
• License costs (total cost not to exceed $30,750 for the first year)

o Office 365 Enterprise E3 – $20.00 per user per month
o Office 365 Business Premium – $12.50 per user per month
o Office 365 Enterprise E1 – $8.00 per user per month
o Office 365 Online Exchange Plan 1 – $4.00 per user per month
o Office 365 Advanced Threat Protection – $5.00 per user per month
o SaaS Protection (Office 365 backup) – $675 per month for up to 250 mailboxes
o Office 365 archiving – $3 per user per month

The term of the contract shall be for two (2) years with three (3) options for an additional year. 

________________________________ ____________________________ 
Christian Motley – Chairperson Date 

Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 
7



 Resolution 2019-18 
Page 1 of 2 

August 21, 2019 

TO:              The Board of Directors 

FROM:         Carrie Butler, General Manager 

SUBJECT:  Resolution to Award a Contract for Technology Consulting Services 

Attached is a resolution requesting authority to award a contract for technology consulting services to assess 
Lextran’s overall Technology program for Transit Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) for  current functionality 
as well as to assess the feasibility of a replacement plan for on-board communications and mobile technology, 
including voice communication, computer-aided dispatch, automatic vehicle location system and the full suite of 
accompanying ITS functionality. 

RFP 1902 was issued May 17, 2019 with proposals received on June 27, 2019. A staff evaluation committee 
reviewed and approved the proposals for compliance and responsiveness. Responsive proposals were received 
from four (4) qualified proposers: 

• Ascendal Group
• IBI Group
• Left Turn Right Turn Ltd.
• nMomentum

An evaluation committee ranked the proposals received. IBI Group received the highest ranking and is 
recommended to be awarded the contract per the terms of their proposal and RFP 1902. 

Pricing will be as follows: 
• Project Director – Year 1 $275.00 per hour, Year 2 $283.25 per hour, Year 3 $291.75 per hour
• Project Advisor/QA – Year 1 $200.00 per hour, Year 2 $206.00 per hour, Year 3 $212.18 per hour
• Project Manager – Year 1 $130.00 per hour, Year 2 $133.90 per hour, Year 3 $137.92 per hour
• Consultant – Year 1 $105.00 per hour, Year 2 $108.15 per hour, Year 3 $111.39 per hour
• Analyst/Accountant – Year 1 $85.00 per hour, Year 2 $87.55 per hour, Year 3 $90.18 per hour
• Senior Consultant – Year 1 $175.00 per hour, Year 2 $180.25 per hour, Year 3 $185.66 per hour

The project will be broken into three phases: 
Phase 1 Strategic Planning has a not-to-exceed amount of $69,925.00 
Phase 2 Project Design and Procurement has a not-to-exceed amount of $66,490.00 
Phase 3 Implementation Assistance has a not-to-exceed amount of $128,190.00 
With the total project costs having a not-to-exceed amount of $264,605.00.  
The funds for Phase 1 are included in the current capital budget.  

The term of the contract awarded will be for three (3) years with one (1) two-year option. 

If you have any questions or wish to review RFP 1902 or the proposal from IBI Group, please contact me at 255-
7756. 

Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 
8



 Resolution 2019-18 
Page 2 of 2 

RESOLUTION 

TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE LEXINGTON-FAYETTE 
URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT 

MOTION:  ____________________________     SECOND:   ___________________________ 

DATE:    August 21, 2019     RESOLUTION NO.:  2019-18 

WHEREAS, the Transit Authority of the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government (Lextran) issued 
RFP 1902 for technology consulting services, and; 

WHEREAS, RFP 1902 resulted in responsive proposals from four (4) qualified proposers, and; 

WHEREAS, the proposal from IBI Group was the highest ranked proposal; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority of the 
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government (Lextran) hereby authorizes and directs the General Manager to 
execute a contract with IBI Group for technology consulting services as per the terms of RFP 1902 and the 
proposal submitted by IBI Group, which are incorporated herein by reference. Pricing will be as follows: 

• Project Director – Year 1 $275.00 per hour, Year 2 $283.25 per hour, Year 3 $291.75 per hour
• Project Advisor/QA – Year 1 $200.00 per hour, Year 2 $206.00 per hour, Year 3 $212.18 per hour
• Project Manager – Year 1 $130.00 per hour, Year 2 $133.90 per hour, Year 3 $137.92 per hour
• Consultant – Year 1 $105.00 per hour, Year 2 $108.15 per hour, Year 3 $111.39 per hour
• Analyst/Accountant – Year 1 $85.00 per hour, Year 2 $87.55 per hour, Year 3 $90.18 per hour
• Senior Consultant – Year 1 $175.00 per hour, Year 2 $180.25 per hour, Year 3 $185.66 per hour

The project will be broken into three phases. Phase 1 Strategic Planning is not-to-exceed $69,925.00. Phase 2 
Project Design and Procurement is not-to-exceed $66,490.00. Phase 3 Implementation Assistance is not-to-
exceed $128,190.00. The total project costs are not-to-exceed $264,605.00. The not-to-exceed amount for Year 1 
is $69,925.  

The term of the contract awarded will be for three (3) years with one (1) two-year option. 

________________________________ ____________________________ 
Christian Motley – Chairperson Date 

Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 
9



 Resolution 2019-19 
Page 1 of 2 

August 21, 2019 

TO:              The Board of Directors 

FROM:         Christian Motley, Chairperson 

SUBJECT:  Resolution to Exercise a Contract Extension with TransDev for Management Services 

Attached is a resolution requesting authority to exercise the option in Lextran’s contract with Transdev for an 
additional year of management services. 

The Board approved resolution 2016-27 on September 21, 2016 authorizing the Chairperson to execute a contract 
with Transdev to provide management services for a period of two years starting on November 1, 2016 and ending 
October 31, 2018. The resulting contract was executed on November 1, 2016. This contract contains three options 
for an additional year of service. The first option year was exercised by Board Resolution 2018-04 on March 21, 
2018. That extension will end on October 31, 2019. The second option year will begin on November 1, 2019 and 
end on October 31, 2020. The last option year, if exercised, will begin on November 1, 2020 and end on October 31, 
2021. 

Lextran is currently paying Transdev an annual fee of $324,042 or $27,003.50 per month. For this new extension 
(year four), Lextran will pay an annual fee of $334,291 or $27,857.58 per month. If the final option year is 
exercised, Lextran will pay an annual fee of $344,864 or $28,738.67 per month (year five). In addition, legal fees for 
grievances and arbitrations, which are not included in the above fees, will be at a rate not to exceed $365 per hour 
in Year Four and, if exercised, $370 per hour in Year Five. 

If you have any questions, please contact me. 

Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 
10



 Resolution 2019-19 
Page 2 of 2 

RESOLUTION 

TRANSIT AUTHORITY OF THE LEXINGTON-FAYETTE 
URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT 

MOTION:  ____________________________     SECOND:   ___________________________ 

DATE:    August 21, 2019       RESOLUTION NO.:  2019-19 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority of the Lexington-Fayette Urban County 
Government (Lextran) approved Resolution 2016-27 on September 21, 2016 to award a contract to Transdev 
for management services, and; 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority of the Lexington-Fayette Urban County 
Government (Lextran) approved Resolution 2018-04 on March 21, 2018 to exercise the first of three possible 
extensions to the contract with Transdev, and; 

WHEREAS, the current contract extension with Transdev is set to expire on October 31, 2019, and; 

WHEREAS, the contract with Transdev contains two (2) remaining options for additional years of 
service that may be exercised; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Transit Authority of the 
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government (Lextran) hereby authorizes and directs the Chairperson to 
exercise the contract extension with Transdev according to the terms as set forth in the contract between 
Lextran and Transdev dated November 1, 2016, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
The contract extension will be for a time period of one year starting on November 1, 2019 and ending on 
October 31, 2020. The cost shall be an annual fee of $334,291 or $27,857.58 per month. Legal fees for 
grievances and arbitrations will be at a rate not to exceed $365 per hour. 

________________________________ ____________________________ 
Christian Motley – Chairperson Date 

Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 
11



1

Lextran Title 
VI Program 
Plan Update 
2019

August 21, 2019
12



2

WE SERVE 
PEOPLE
AND OUR 
COMMUNITY 
WITH MOBILITY 
SOLUTIONS.

13



3

Introduction to Title VI

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964

• Requirements and guidance for Federal Transit Administration funding
recipients was published as Title VI Circular 4702.1B

• Intent is for transit agencies to provide mobility in a nondiscriminatory
manner

• Limited English Proficiency program established under Executive Order
13166

“No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, 
or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the 
benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program 
or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.”

14



4

Federal Transit Administration Circular 
4702.1B

• Triennial Title VI Program Plan update
requirement for transit agencies, including:
• Public engagement

• Equity analyses for service and fares

• Required definition of:
• Major Service Change Policy

• Disparate Impact Policy

• Disproportionate Burden Policy

15



5

Title VI Approval Process

• July 17: The Title VI Program Plan update was
publicly announced

• July 23: Public comment period opened

• July 30 & 31: Public input sessions for proposed
policies

• August 9: Public comment period closes

• August 9-16: Feedback review and policy revision

• August 21: Title VI Program Plan submitted for
approval by the Lextran Board of Directors

• October 1: Title VI Program Plan submitted to the
Federal Transit Authority

16



6

Public Participation Policy

• Lextran shall solicit and consider public comments prior to any
major service change or any fare increase.

• Lextran shall set aside time for public comment during each meeting
of Lextran’s Board of Directors. Any individual or representative of a
group can request three minutes to address the Board on any
agenda item. Items can be placed on the agenda by contacting (859)
255-7756 or info@lextran.com.

• Notice of public meetings will be provided through multiple
channels, including social media, digital signage at the Transit
Center, communications with community-based organizations or
special interest groups.

• Interpretation services are available for all public meetings upon
request one week prior to the meeting.

17

mailto:info@lextran.com


7

Title VI Concepts

• Major Service Change: A proposed change to a
fixed-route service that increases or decreases the
revenue miles or revenue hours by 25%.

• Disparate Impact: “A facially neutral policy or
practice that disproportionately affects members of
a group identified by race, color, or national origin.”

• Disproportionate Burden: “A neutral policy or
practice that disproportionately affects low-income
populations more than non-low-income populations.”

18



8

Disparate Impact and 
Disproportionate 
Burden

• Calculate the average
minority or low-income
population in Fayette
County.

• Identify US Census block
groups that are above
average.

• A disparate impact or
disproportionate burden
occurs when a proposed
major service change
affects minority or low-
income populations to a
greater extent than non-
minority or low-income
populations (±20%).

19



9

Actions for Major Service Changes

Avoid, minimize, and mitigate disparate impact and disproportionate 
burden during transit route planning.

Revise and reevaluate major service changes when disparate impact 
or disproportionate burden is found.

Lextran may proceed with a major service change that causes 
disparate impact or disproportionate burden if:

• There is a substantial legitimate justification for the proposed
major service change.

• There are no alternatives that would have a less disparate
impact and still accomplish legitimate major service change
goals.

20



10

Conclusion

• This Title VI Program Plan guides Lextran in the production of
nondiscriminatory transit service.

• Under FTA guidance, Lextran encourages public comment on Title VI
policies:

• Disparate impact
• Disproportionate burden
• Public comment policy on service changes
• Actions for major service changes

• All service changes are evaluated for disparate impact and
disproportionate burden before being proposed to the public.

• All major service change proposals trigger additional analysis and
public input.

21



LEXTRAN  

TITLE VI PROGRAM PLAN 

OCTOBER 2019 

22



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................................... 1 

POLICY STATEMENT .......................................................................................................................... 1 

REQUIREMENT TO PROVIDE AN ANNUAL TITLE VI CERTIFICATION AND ASSURANCE ............. 2 

REQUIREMENT TO PREPARE AND SUBMIT A TITLE VI PROGRAM PLAN ..................................... 2 

REQUIREMENT TO NOTIFY BENEFICIARIES OF PROTECTION UNDER TITLE VI .......................... 2 

REQUIREMENT TO DEVELOP TITLE VI COMPLAINT PROCEDURES AND COMPLAINT FORM ... 4 

REQUIREMENT TO RECORD AND REPORT TRANSIT RELATED TITLE VI INVESTIGATIONS, 

COMPLAINTS, AND LAWSUITS.......................................................................................................... 6 

PROMOTING INCLUSIVE PUBLIC PARTICIPATION .......................................................................... 7 

SOLICITATION OF COMMENTS AND PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS ........................................... 8 

PUBLIC MEETINGS FOR PROPOSED FARE INCREASES AND MAJOR SERVICE CHANGES ..... 9 

CONSIDERATION OF PUBLIC COMMENTS ................................................................................... 9 

RESPONSIBILITIES ........................................................................................................................ 10 

SUMMARY OF RECENT PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT AND OUTREACH EFFORTS ......................... 11 

REQUIREMENT TO PROVIDE MEANINGFUL ACCESS TO LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY 

PERSONS ........................................................................................................................................... 12 

FOUR-FACTOR ANALYSIS............................................................................................................. 13 

NUMBER OF LEP PERSONS ELIGIBLE TO BE SERVED OR LIKELY ENCOUNTERED BY 

LEXTRAN .................................................................................................................................... 13 

THE FREQUENCY WITH WHICH THE LEP PERSONS COME IN CONTACT WITH THE 

PROGRAM .................................................................................................................................. 14 

THE NATURE AND IMPORTANCE OF THE PROGRAM, ACTIVITY OR SERVICE PROVIDED 

BY THE RECIPIENT TO PEOPLES’ LIVES ................................................................................. 14 

RESOURCES AVAILABLE AND COST ....................................................................................... 14 

LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY PLAN ...................................................................................... 15 

IDENTIFYING LEP INDIVIDUALS WHO NEED LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE .............................. 15 

LANGUAGE ASSITANCE MEASURES ....................................................................................... 16 

TRAINING STAFF ....................................................................................................................... 17 

PROVIDING NOTICE TO LEP PERSONS ................................................................................... 17 

23



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

ii 

MONITORING AND UPDATING THE LEP PLAN ...................................................................... 17 

CHANNELS FOR LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE ................................................................................ 17 

CUSTOMER SERVICE ................................................................................................................ 17 

WEBSITE ..................................................................................................................................... 18 

MINORITY REPRESENTATION ON PLANNING AND ADVISORY BODIES ..................................... 18 

PROVIDING ASSISTANCE TO SUBRECIPIENTS .............................................................................. 18 

MONITORING SUBRECIPIENTS ....................................................................................................... 18 

DETERMINATION OF SITE OR LOCATION OF FACILITIES ............................................................. 18 

REQUIREMENT TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INFORMATION UPON REQUEST .............................. 18 

REQUIREMENT TO SET SYSTEM SERVICE STANDARDS AND POLICIES .................................... 19 

SERVICE STANDARDS .................................................................................................................. 19 

VEHICLE LOADS ........................................................................................................................ 19 

VEHICLE HEADWAY .................................................................................................................. 20 

ON-TIME PERFORMANCE ......................................................................................................... 20 

SERVICE AVAILABILITY ............................................................................................................ 20 

HOURS OF OPERATION ............................................................................................................ 21 

SERVICE LEVELS ....................................................................................................................... 21 

SERVICE POLICIES ........................................................................................................................ 21 

PASSENGER STOPS .................................................................................................................. 21 

PASSENGER AMENITIES .......................................................................................................... 21 

VEHICLE ASSIGNMENT ............................................................................................................ 21 

REQUIREMENT TO COLLECT AND REPORT DEMOGRAPHIC DATA ............................................. 23 

DEMOGRAPHIC RIDERSHIP AND TRAVEL PATTERNS .............................................................. 24 

REQUIREMENT TO MONITOR TRANSIT SERVICE .......................................................................... 26 

ROUTE MONITORING PROGRAM ................................................................................................. 26 

REQUIREMENT TO EVALUATE SERVICE AND FARE CHANGES ................................................... 30 

MAJOR SERVICE CHANGE POLICY ............................................................................................. 30 

DISPARATE IMPACT POLICY ................................................................................................... 30 

DISPROPORTIONATE BURDEN POLICY .................................................................................. 30 

24



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

iii 

FINDING A DISPARATE IMPACT OR DISPROPORTIONATE BURDEN ................................... 30 

CONDUCTING A DISPARATE IMPACT OR DISPROPORTIONATE BURDEN ANALYSIS ....... 31 

DEFINITIONS OF MINORITY POPULATIONS ........................................................................... 31 

SERVICE EXPANSION POLICY ..................................................................................................... 31 

ON-GOING EVALUATION .............................................................................................................. 31 

APPENDIX A – BOARD RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TITLE VI PROGRAM PLAN .................. 32 

APPENDIX B – CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES ................................................................... 33 

APPENDIX C – TITLE VI COMPLAINT FORM-ENGLISH, SPANISH, AND CHINESE ..................... 35 

TABLE OF TABLES 

Table 1: Agency Contacts for Title VI Complaints............................................................................ 6 

Table 2: Lextran Title VI Complaints 2016-2019 .............................................................................. 7 

Table 3: Public Meetings 2016-2019 ............................................................................................... 12 

Table 4: English Speaking Proficiency in Lexington-Fayette County (American Community 

Survey 2017) ...................................................................................................................................... 14 

Table 5: Languages of Persons who Speak English Less than "Very Well" (American 

Community Survey 2017) ................................................................................................................. 15 

Table 6: Lextran Service Standards by Route Functional Classification ...................................... 26 

TABLE OF FIGURES 

Figure 1: National Origin of Lextran Survey Respondents (RLS 2015) ......................................... 16 

Figure 2: Demographic Ridership (RLS 2015) ................................................................................. 24 

Figure 3: Trip Purpose (RLS 2015) ................................................................................................... 25 

Figure 4: Trip Time (RLS 2015) ........................................................................................................ 25 

25



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

1 

INTRODUCTION 

The Transit Authority of the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government (Lextran), 

Lexington's public transportation system, has been in existence in its current form since 

December 1, 1973. Lextran operations are located on 13.69 acres at 200 West Loudon Avenue, 

Lexington, KY 40508. Lextran’s Title VI Program Plan has been revised to comply with FTA 

Circular C 4702.1B dated October 1, 2012. 

Lextran receives federal financial assistance to provide transit services. Federal funding is 

received in accordance with Chapter 53 of title 49, U.S. Code, as amended by the Fixing 

America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST), and related provisions. As a recipient of these 

funds, Lextran complies with the regulations relative to nondiscrimination in federally assisted 

programs of the Department of Transportation, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, 

as they may be amended from time to time (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations). 

According to the American Community Survey (2010-2014), Lexington-Fayette County has a 

total population of 315,109 and is required to submit Title VI update. Title VI refers to 

prohibitions against discrimination in federal programs. Lextran is committed to the following: 

1. Ensure that the level and quality of transit service is provided without regard to race,

color, or national origin;

2. Identify and address, as appropriate, disproportionately high and adverse human health

and environmental effects, including social and economic effects of programs and

activities on minority populations and low-income populations;

3. Promote the full and fair participation of all affected populations in transit decision

making;

4. Prevent the denial, reduction, or delay in benefits related to programs and activities that

benefit minority populations or low-income populations; and

5. Ensure meaningful access to programs and activities by persons with limited English

proficiency.

POLICY STATEMENT 

Lextran assures that no person shall on the grounds of race, color, national origin, or sex as 

provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 

(P.L. 100.259) be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise 

subjected to discrimination under any program or activity. Lextran further assures every effort 

will be made to ensure nondiscrimination in all its programs and activities, whether those 

programs and activities are federally funded or not. In the event that Lextran distributes federal 

26



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

2 

assistance funds to another governmental entity or contractor, Lextran will include Title VI 

language in all written agreements and will monitor for compliance. 

REQUIREMENT TO PROVIDE AN ANNUAL TITLE VI CERTIFICATION AND 

ASSURANCE   

The requirement to provide an annual Title VI certification and assurance is fulfilled when 

Lextran submits its annual certification and assurance to the FTA, most recently on March 22, 

2019. Refer to Appendix B for documentation of Lextran’s annual certification.  

REQUIREMENT TO PREPARE AND SUBMIT A TITLE VI PROGRAM PLAN 

The requirement to prepare and submit a Title VI Program Plan is fulfilled by this document. In 

preparation of submission, Lextran announced and solicited public comment according to the 

following timeline: 

• July 17, 2019 - Announce public meetings

• July 22, 2019 - Public comment period opens

• July 30, 2019 - Public meeting held

• July 31, 2019 - Public meeting held

• August 9, 2019 - Public comment period closes

• August 9-16, 2019 - Feedback review and policy revisions

• August 21, 2019 - Proposed policy submitted to Lextran Board of Directors

• October 1, 2019 - Title VI Program Plan submitted to FTA

The intent of the public meetings was to introduce and describe Title VI and its impact on 

public transportation while soliciting public comments on key elements of this Title VI Program 

Plan. Along with a brief introduction to Title VI, Lextran’s major service change policy, 

disparate impact policy, and disproportionate burden policy was presented for comment.   

REQUIREMENT TO NOTIFY BENEFICIARIES OF PROTECTION UNDER TITLE VI 

Lextran notifies beneficiaries of their rights under Title VI via the following: 

• Lextran’s Transit Center

• Lextran’s administrative office building

• Each Lextran bus

• On Lextran’s website, www.lextran.com

The following notice is posted at Lextran’s Transit Center, the administrative office building, 

and on each bus: 

27

http://www.lextran.com/


Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

3 

Notifying the Public of Rights under Title VI 

The Transit Authority of Lexington, Kentucky, Lextran operates its programs and 

services without regard to race, color, and national origin in accordance with Title VI of 

the Civil Rights Act. Any person who believes she or he has been aggrieved by any 

unlawful discriminatory practice under Title VI may file a complaint with Lextran through 

direct mail, electronic mail, web-site customer comment form, customer comment card 

and by telephone. 

For more information on the Lextran’s civil rights program, and the procedures to file a 

complaint, contact (859) 255-7756; email title.vi.complaint@lextran.com; or visit our 

administrative office at 200 West Loudon Avenue, Lexington, KY 40508.  For more 

information, visit www.lextran.com. 

A complainant may file a complaint directly with the Federal Transit Administration by 

filing a complaint with the Office of Civil Rights, Attention: Title VI Program Coordinator, 

East Building, 5th Floor-TCR, 1200 New Jersey Ave., SE, Washington, DC 20590 

If information is needed in another language, contact (859) 255-7756. 

Notificación Para El Público De Sus Derechos Bajo El Titulo VI 

La autoridad de Transito de Lexington, Kentucky, Lextran opera sus programas y sus 

servicios sin importa raza, color, origen según el Titulo VI de la ley de Derechos Civiles. 

Cualquier persona que cree que ha sido agraviado por cualquier práctica discriminatoria 

ilegal bajo el Titulo VI puede presentar una queja con Lextran a través del correo 

regular, correo electrónico, formulario de comentarios en la página web, tarjeta de 

comentarios para clientes y también por teléfono. 

Para más información sobre el programa de los derechos civiles y procedimientos y 

como presentar una queja con Lextran contáctese con el siguiente número de teléfono 

(859) 255-7756 correo electrónico: title.vi.complaint@lextran.com; o visite nuestra

oficina administrativa localizada en 200 West Loudon Avenue, Lexington, KY 40508.

Para más información visite nuestra página web: www.lextran.com

También se desea hacer un reclamo directo, puede hacerlo con La Administración 

Federal De Transito. Mande una denuncia a La Oficina De Derechos Civiles, Atención: 

Coordinador Del Programa Titulo VI, East Building, 5th Floor-TCR, 1200 New Jersey Ave, 

SE, Washington, DC 20590 

Si necesita información en otro idioma, contáctese con el siguiente número telefónico 

(859) 255-7756.

Lextran’s website contains information about the Title VI Program Plan and provides an 

additional method to submit complaints. The website contains the contact information for the 

28

mailto:title.vi.complaint@lextran.com
http://www.lextran.com/
mailto:title.vi.complaint@lextran.com
http://www.lextran.com/


Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

4 

current Title VI Coordinator and links to the full Title VI Program Plan. Lextran’s Title VI page 

can be accessed at www.lextran.com/about/titlevi. The following notice is included on the 

website in English and Spanish: 

Lextran operates programs without regard to race, color, and national origin; 

Customer complaints or requests for information about this and Title VI may be 

directed to Lextran via direct mail, electronic mail, web-site customer comment form, 

customer comment card, and/or by telephone. 

1. Visit www.lextran.com and fill out a Customer Comment by selecting the

‘Contact Us’ link. Please complete the form, choosing either complaint or

question.

2. Call (859) 255-7756 and the phone attendant can take the complaint or assist in

providing more information.

3. Lextran’s Mailing Address is 200 West Loudon Avenue • Lexington, KY 40508

4. Customer Comment Cards can be obtained at the Transit Center during

customer service hours.

REQUIREMENT TO DEVELOP TITLE VI COMPLAINT PROCEDURES AND 

COMPLAINT FORM 

Any person who believes she or he has been discriminated against on the basis of race, color, 

or national origin by Lextran may file a Title VI complaint by completing and submitting the 

Title VI Complaint Form. The Title VI complaint form can be found in English and Spanish on 

Lextran’s website, at the Transit Center customer service window during regular hours, or at 

the administrative office during regular hours.  

These procedures cover all complaints filed under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 for 

alleged discrimination in any program or activity administered by Lextran. These procedures 

do not deny the right of the complainant to file formal complaints with other state or federal 

agencies or to seek private counsel for complaints alleging discrimination. Every effort will be 

made to obtain early resolution of complaints at the lowest level possible. The option of 

informal mediation meeting(s) between the affected parties and Lextran may be utilized for 

resolution. Any individual, group of individuals, or entity that believes they have been subjected 

to discrimination prohibited under Title VI and related statutes may file a complaint. 

1) A formal complaint must be filed within one-hundred eighty (180) days of the alleged

occurrence. Complaints shall be in writing and signed by the individual or his/her

representative, and will include the complainant‘s name, address, and telephone

number; name of alleged discriminating official, basis of complaint (race, color, national

29

http://www.lextran.com/about/titlevi


Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

5 

origin), and the date of alleged act(s). A statement detailing the facts and 

circumstances of the alleged discrimination must accompany all complaints. 

2) Lextran encourages individuals to submit Title VI complaints in writing using the

complaint form and mailing it to:

Title VI Coordinator

Lextran

200 West Loudon Avenue

Lexington KY, 40508

3) In the case where a complainant is unable or incapable of providing a written statement,

a verbal complaint of discrimination may be made to Lextran‘s Title VI Coordinator.

Under these circumstances, the complainant will be interviewed, and the Title VI

Coordinator will assist the complainant in completing a written statement.

4) When a complaint is received, the Title VI Coordinator will provide written

acknowledgment to the complainant by registered mail within ten (10) business days.

5) If a complaint is deemed incomplete, additional information will be requested, and the

complainant will be provided sixty (60) business days to submit the required

information. Failure to do so may be considered good cause for a determination of no

investigative merit.

6) Within fifteen (15) business days from receipt of a complete complaint, Lextran will

determine its jurisdiction in pursuing the matter and whether the complaint has merit to

warrant investigation. Within five (5) days of this decision, the General Manger (GM) of

Lextran or his/her authorized designee will notify the complainant and respondent, by

registered mail, informing them of the determination.

7) If the decision is not to investigate the complaint, the notification shall specifically state

the reason for the decision.

8) If the complaint is to be investigated, the notification shall state the grounds of the

Authority‘s jurisdiction, while informing the parties that their full cooperation will be

required in gathering additional information and assisting the investigator.

9) When Lextran does not have sufficient jurisdiction, the GM or his/her authorized

designee will refer the complaint to the appropriate local, state, or federal agency

holding such jurisdiction.

10) If the complaint has investigative merit, the GM or his/her authorized designee will

instruct the Title VI Coordinator to fully investigate the complaint. A complete

investigation will be conducted, and an investigative report will be submitted to the GM

within sixty (60) days from receipt of the complaint. The report will include a description

30



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

6 

of the incident, summaries of all persons interviewed, and a finding with 

recommendations and proposed resolution where appropriate. If the investigation is 

delayed for any reason, the Title VI Coordinator will notify the appropriate authorities, 

and an extension will be requested.  

11) The General Manger or his/her authorized designee will issue letters of finding to the

complainant and respondent within ninety (90) days from receipt of the complaint.

12) If the complainant is dissatisfied with Lextran‘s resolution of the complaint, he/she has

the right to file a complaint with additional agencies, shown below:

Other Agency Contacts 
Kentucky Commission on 

Human Rights  

Civil Rights Compliance 

Officer  

Title VI Program 

Coordinator 

162 E Main St # 226, FTA Region IV East Building, 5th Floor-TCR, 

Lexington, KY 40507 230 Peachtree, NW 1200 New Jersey Ave 

(859) 252-0071 Suite 800 SE, Washington, DC 20590 

http://kchr.ky.gov/ Atlanta, GA 30303 

(404) 865-5600

Fax (404) 865-5605 

Table 1: Agency Contacts for Title VI Complaints 

Lextran’s complaint form has been translated into Spanish and Chinese. Examples of the 

complaint forms can be found in Appendix C.  

REQUIREMENT TO RECORD AND REPORT TRANSIT RELATED TITLE VI 

INVESTIGATIONS, COMPLAINTS, AND LAWSUITS 

There are no Title VI related lawsuits and there have been no active investigations conducted 

by the Federal Transit Administration.  Since the last Title VI Program Plan update, we have 

received four related complaints: 

31

http://kchr.ky.gov/


Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

7 

Complainant Date Summary Status Action Taken 

Michael P. August 

16, 2017 

Concerned the service 

changes at the time 

negatively affected the 

protected classes of 

the population more 

due to increased wait 

time.  

His concerns were 

heard by the Lextran 

Board of Directors 

and Management. 

Mr. P did not file a 

formal complaint 

with FTA. 

No action was 

taken because 

there was no 

support for the 

claim.   

Mia T. November 

6, 2017 

Race discrimination 

complaint.  

Based on evidence 

from video footage 

from the bus the 

allegations cannot 

be substantiated.   

No action was 

taken since there 

was no support 

for the claim.   

James B. May 24, 

2018 

He found statements 

by driver about racism 

offensive.  

Video footage from 

the bus was 

observed. 

Conversation and 

comments were not 

supported by 

Lextran. 

Driver training to 

ensure Lextran’s 

policies and 

procedures 

under Civil 

Rights Act are 

followed.  

James E. December 

13, 2018 

Race discrimination 

complaint.  

Investigation by 

Human Rights 

Commission staff. 

No probable 

cause was 

found.  

Table 2: Lextran Title VI Complaints 2016-2019 

PROMOTING INCLUSIVE PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

When conducting public outreach and public involvement activities Lextran seeks input from 

minority, low-income, disabled, and English-Language Learner (ELL) populations. Lextran 

schedules public involvement meetings in transit-accessible locations to ensure the widest 

possible participation from all groups. Typical locations include public libraries and Lextran’s 

administrative offices.  

It is the policy of Lextran to communicate any change in service, permanent or temporary, to 

the public. Lextran encourages the broadest possible public participation in major decisions 

that affect our service, our customers, and our community. 

On the third Wednesday of each month, Lextran’s Board of Directors calls for public comment 

at their public meeting. Any member of the public may comment on an agenda item listed in 

that meeting’s agenda. A member of the public may request an agenda item by contacting 

32



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

8 

Lextran at (859) 255-7756 or info@lextran.com. Meeting agendas for the Board of Directors 

monthly meeting are typically published on the second Friday of the month.   

SOLICITATION OF COMMENTS AND PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS 

Lextran utilizes a variety of methods to reach individuals, communities, and the public-at-large 

in an ongoing effort to circulate Lextran-related information. These tools are used, along with 

enhanced efforts like community events and Lextran-hosted public meetings, to engage and 

solicit feedback when a major service decision or fare change is proposed. Community 

notification will occur not less than two weeks before the first public meeting. Lextran 

encourages the community to comment on proposed service decisions in the following ways: 

• Attending a public meeting,

• Submitting comments or letters to Lextran,

• Submitting comments via the Lextran website,

• Submitting comments via Lextran’s Customer Service team by phone or in person,

• Feedback via social media channels such as Facebook, Twitter, and Instagram.

Other mechanisms for commenting may be utilized, if necessary, to gain a more complete 

overview of the public's opinion on the proposed change. These may include onboard surveys, 

phone surveys, or other methods identified as appropriate.  

Strategies to provide notice of meetings or upcoming public comment periods are intentionally 

broad to increase the reach of Lextran’s messaging. Public communication strategies are as 

follows: 

• Lextran’s social media outlets and website. Lextran is active on Facebook

(facebook.com/lextran), Twitter (twitter.com/lextran), and Instagram (@_lextran)

providing continuous updates and commentary. Our website sources Google Translate

to allow members of ELL populations access to the same information.

• Interior notifications on all Lextran buses (printed and/or digital) – Printed passenger

alerts are posted onboard all Lextran buses. Digital announcements (audio and text

scroll) may also be used if space is available in English and in Spanish.

• Use of digital signage at the Lextran Transit Center in English and Spanish

• Communications with local elected officials

• Communications with community-based organizations and/or special interest groups

such as the Mayor’s Commission for People with Disabilities, Senior Services

Commission, Urban League of Lexington, and so forth.

33

mailto:info@lextran.com


Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

9 

• When appropriate, Lextran will live stream meetings via social media and provide video

updates of the proposed changes, allowing community members unable to attend

meetings to ask questions in real time and provide the information with questions and

answers for others to view at their convenience.

PUBLIC MEETINGS FOR PROPOSED FARE INCREASES AND MAJOR SERVICE CHANGES 

For fare increases and major service changes, Lextran will hold public meetings with the intent 

of gathering the broadest public comments about proposed changes. At a minimum, at least 

two public meetings are held, with at least two weeks advance notice when major service or 

fare changes are proposed. Every effort will be made to hold public meetings at locations 

impacted by the proposed changes and at a variety of times to best accommodate the public. 

Public meetings in the event of major service changes or fare increases would vary in format. 

Lextran would strategically format a public meeting based on the size of the audience and the 

magnitude of the proposed changes.   

All Lextran public meetings for major service changes and fare increases will meet the 

following criteria: 

• Lextran staff will always be available to explain the proposed changes and allow the
public to ask questions.

• All public comments will be captured for the record, either electronically or through
written transcript.

• Meeting materials will be available in ADA-compliant formats, such as Braille or audio-
recording, and Spanish language translation on request of at least one week in advance
of the meeting.

• A sign language interpreter or Spanish language interpreter will be available at the
public meeting, on request of at least one week in advance of the meeting.

• Lextran will schedule the public meeting in an ADA-accessible location within the
affected Lextran service area.

Major service changes are defined as a change that impacts 25 percent or more of the service 

miles or hours on any route. More information can be found below in the chapter titled 

“Requirement to evaluate service and fare changes.”  

CONSIDERATION OF PUBLIC COMMENTS 

All comments, both positive and negative, concerning fare increases and major service 

changes received through the public participation process will be compiled and summarized 

by the Planning, Technology & Community Relations department and provided to the Director 

of Director of Planning, Technology & Community Relations and the General Manager for 

34



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

10 

review. After review of public comment, the proposed changes may be revised. Any changes 

made based on public comment will be itemized. 

Following the review of comments and revision of changes (if necessary), a summary report 

will be provided to the General Manager and Board of Directors for discussion and 

consideration. All summaries of the public participation process will faithfully represent both 

positive and negative comments. All public comments will be available, unedited, for review by 

the Lextran Board of Directors, the General Manager, and the public. 

RESPONSIBILITIES 

The primary responsibility for the public participation process for fare increases and major 

service changes rests with Lextran’s Director of Planning, Technology & Community Relations 

(service changes and public participation) and Lextran’s General Manager (fare increases), 

assisted by administrative staff.   

For service changes, the Planning, Technology & Community Relations Department will: 

• Develop plans and make decisions concerning proposed changes.

• Conduct equity analyses as appropriate, including disparate impact and
disproportionate burden analyses.

• Convene the public participation team to assist in the solicitation of public comments.

• Attend and participate in public meetings regarding proposed service changes.

• Review comments.

• Revise the major service change proposals based on public comments, if appropriate.

• Communicate the results to the General Manager for consideration and submission to
the Board of Directors.

For fare increases, the General Manager will: 

• Under the direction of the Board of Directors, work with Lextran’s Management Team to
make plans and decisions concerning proposed fare increases.

• Convene the public participation team to assist in the solicitation of public comments.

• Attend and participate in all public meetings regarding proposed fare increases.

• Review comments and revise the proposed fare increase based on public comments, if
appropriate.

• Communicate the results to the Lextran Board of Directors for consideration and
approval.

• Communicate the information to the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Council.

The Planning, Technology & Community Relations Department will: 

35



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

11 

• Make all arrangements for the public meetings.

• Determine the best format for the public meeting to elicit the broadest public
participation.

• Maintain all documentation related to the public participation process.

• Use the communications and outreach methods outlined above, including onboard bus
announcements and Lextran website notices, to notify the public of all public meetings
and proposed service changes or fare increases.

• Prepare a fact sheet to be used with the public, employees and media concerning the
proposed change.

• Create accessible format or Spanish translation materials and/or retain interpreters, if
requested at least one week in advance.

• Arrange for the official record of the meeting (digital electronic recording or note-taker),
including sign-in sheets.

• Attend all public meetings.

• Summarize and compile all public comments received at the public meetings, through
U.S. mail and electronic mail, and/or by phone.

SUMMARY OF RECENT PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT AND OUTREACH EFFORTS 

Since the 2016 Title VI Program Plan update, Lextran has proposed 19 service improvements 

and zero fare increases. There were no proposed major service changes. A total of 12 public 

meetings were held throughout the community and in areas with low income and minority 

populations. Approximately 56 people attended the meetings hosted in local libraries, and 

Lextran’s Headquarters. Locations were chosen based on low income, minority population, 

access to transit, and accessibility for people with disabilities.   

36



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

12 

Meeting Date Time Location Description/Topic Attendees 

10.12.16 6 p.m. 
Central Branch Public 

Library 
Community Forum 6 

02.08.17 6 p.m. 
Central Branch Public 

Library 

Rider Technology & 

Communications 
4 

03.01.17 3 p.m. 
Central Branch Public 

Library 

April 2017 Service 

Improvements 
4 

03.06.17 Noon 
Central Branch Public 

Library 

April 2017 Service 

Improvements 
4 

07.26.17 6pm Lextran Headquarters 
August 2017 Service 

Improvements 
5 

08.01.17 12 p.m. 
Central Branch Public 

Library 

August 2017 Service 

Improvements 
10 

03.19.18 12 p.m. 
Eastside Branch Public 

Library 

April 2018 Service 

Improvements 
1 

03.26.19 6 p.m. 
Central Branch Public 

Library 

April 2018 Service 

Improvements 
3 

06.18.18 11 a.m. Lextran Headquarters 
5310 Bus Stop 

Improvements 
12 

06.18.18 6 p.m. Lextran Headquarters 
5310 Bus Stop 

Improvements 
5 

12.05.18 6 p.m. Lextran Headquarters 

December 2018 

Service 

Improvements 

1 

12.06.18 1 p.m. 
Village Branch Public 

Library 

2018 Service 

Improvements 
0 

07.30.19 11 a.m. Lexington Senior Center Title VI Program 6 

07.31.19 6 p.m. Lextran Headquarters Title VI Program 0 

Table 3: Public Meetings 2016-2019 

REQUIREMENT TO PROVIDE MEANINGFUL ACCESS TO LIMITED ENGLISH 

PROFICIENCY PERSONS   

Under this Title VI Program Plan, limited English proficient (LEP) persons are defined as 

individuals who are limited in their ability to read, write, speak, or understand English. In 

Lexington-Fayette County, Kentucky, about five percent of the population greater than five 

years old speak English less than “very well” according to the 2017 American Community 

Survey. The population of LEP individuals includes people who speak English as a first 

37



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

13 

language and people who speak a language other than English as a first language. Citizenship 

does not determine LEP status, as English fluency is not required for citizenship in the United 

States. Access to services under Title VI applies to United States citizens, documented non-

citizens, and undocumented non-citizens.  

The basis for LEP falls under the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and Executive Order 13166, signed 

into order by President Bill Clinton on August 11, 2000. Under the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 

failure to ensure that LEP individuals can participate in federally assisted programs can 

constitute discrimination based on national origin under Title VI. Executive Order 13166 

clarified requirements under Title VI and required that public agencies implement a system 

through which LEP individuals can access federally funded services.   

Lextran follows the USDOT’s Policy Guidance Concerning Recipient’s Responsibilities to 

Limited English Proficient (LEP) Persons (Federal Register: December 14, 2005 Volume 70, 

Number 239) in ensuring meaningful access to transit service and programs by LEP persons. 

As such, the following components of USDOT’s LEP policy guidance are detailed here: 

• Four-factor analysis 

• Language Access Plan (LAP) 

• Channels for Language Assistance 

FOUR-FACTOR ANALYSIS 

The USDOT’s Policy Guidance Concerning Recipient’s Responsibilities to Limited English 

Proficient Persons (2005) set forth a four-factor analysis as a component of an LEP program. 

The four factors are: 

1. The number of, or proportion of, LEP persons eligible to be served or likely to be 

encountered by a program, activity, or service of the recipient 

2. The frequency with which the LEP persons come in contact with the program 

3. The nature and importance of the program, activity, or service provided by the recipient 

to peoples’ lives; and, 

4. The resources available to the recipient and costs.   

NUMBER OF LEP PERSONS ELIGIBLE TO BE SERVED OR LIKELY ENCOUNTERED BY LEXTRAN 

The 2017 American Community Survey estimated the population of Fayette County five years 

of age and older as 295,480. About 5.7 percent, or 16,733 people, speak English less than “very 

well.” Assuming that Lextran will not encounter the entirety of the population five years and 

older who speak English less than “very well,” a reasonable and plausible estimate of 15,000 

LEP people are eligible to be served or likely to be encountered by Lextran.   

38



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

14 

Subject in Fayette County, Kentucky 2010-2014 Estimate Percent 

Population 5 years and over 295,480 100% 

Speak English only 258,818 86.1% 

Language other than English 36,662 12.4% 

Speak English less than "very well" 16,733 5.7% 

Table 4: English Speaking Proficiency in Lexington-Fayette County (American Community Survey 2017)  

THE FREQUENCY WITH WHICH THE LEP PERSONS COME IN CONTACT WITH THE PROGRAM  

Lextran commissioned RLS & Associates to conduct surveys of current riders in 2015, which 

showed about 4 percent of Lextran riders responded less than “very well” when asked about 

their English proficiency. There are two key points of potential interaction between LEP 

persons and Lextran, through the delivery of transit service and in a customer service setting.  

In the delivery of transit service, LEP persons can encounter Lextran during normal operating 

hours, 7 days per week. Lextran’s customer service is open Monday through Friday from 6 AM 

to 6 PM, Saturday and Sunday from 8 AM to 4 PM at the downtown Transit Center. Customer 

service items including customer feedback portals, pass purchasing, and route information 

can be accessed online at any time. 

THE NATURE AND IMPORTANCE OF THE PROGRAM, ACTIVITY OR SERVICE PROVIDED BY 

THE RECIPIENT TO PEOPLES’ LIVES   

Lextran’s service provides access to mobility that many people in Lexington and beyond rely 

on in their daily lives. Typical use of Lextran’s fixed-route service includes commuting to and 

from work, access to universities and colleges, non-emergency medical trips, recreation, and 

so forth. About 71 percent of Lextran’s riders use the service daily (RLS 2015), indicating the 

high importance of Lextran’s service to the community.  

RESOURCES AVAILABLE AND COST 

Lextran will support this LEP plan through both financial and staff resources. Financial 

resources are available such that document translation services can be procured as needed. 

Lextran relies on a third-party phone translation service for any real-time translation needs and 

financial resources will be available for operations and customer service staff to utilize their 

service as needed. Lextran staff will be trained to ensure LEP policies and procedures are 

followed. Further resources will be considered upon discovery that additional measures are 

needed to provide equitable service to LEP customers. 

39



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

15 

LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY PLAN 

IDENTIFYING LEP INDIVIDUALS WHO NEED LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE  

Determining the number of LEP individuals who need language assistance follows from the 

Four-Factor Analysis in that Lextran estimates 15,000 people are eligible to be served or might 

come in contact with our fixed-route service. Lextran adheres to the Department of Justice’s 

Safe Harbor Provision that stipulates written translation of vital documents for each eligible 

LEP language group that constitutes five percent, or 1,000 persons, whichever is less that 

Lextran might encounter in service. Spanish speakers make up over half of the people in 

Lexington who speak English less than “very well.” Chinese was the second largest population 

of people who speak English less than “very well” in Lexington, consisting of about 1,340 

people. Vital documents are therefore translated into both Spanish and Chinese.  

Language 
People who Speak English Less 

than "very well"  

Percent of total 

population 

Spanish  8,772 2.97% 

Chinese 1,340 0.45% 

Arabic 845 0.29% 

French 504 0.17% 

Korean 409 0.15% 

Other Languages 4,863 1.21% 

Total 16,733 5.66% 

Table 5: Languages of Persons who Speak English Less than "Very Well" (American Community Survey 2017) 

Lextran will monitor LEP persons through their customer service and satisfaction surveys 

conducted triennially. The most recent survey was conducted by RLS & Associates and found 

that over 90 percent of riders reported their national origin as the United States, and about 4 

percent of riders spoke English less than “very well.”  

40



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

16 

 

 

LANGUAGE ASSITANCE MEASURES  

Assistance to LEP customers is provided through various methods on board a bus, in a 

customer service setting, and through translation of vital documents by administrative staff.  

On-board, Lextran buses are equipped with voice enunciators and light-emitting diode (LED) 

signage that can provide audio and visual information in both English and Spanish. For initial 

interaction with LEP passengers, Lextran coach operators carry U.S. Census Bureau’s I-Speak 

cards. Lextran coach operators have radio access to central dispatch and can request bi-

lingual transportation supervisor support or other language-based assistance when necessary.  

For face-to-face customer service, Lextran’s customer service staff are equipped with U.S. 

Census Bureau’s I-Speak cards for initial interaction with LEP customers. Lextran’s customer 

service staff also have access to telephone-based translation services through Language 

Services Associates. Online customer service through www.lextran.com can be conducted in 

multiple language through Google Translate’s web extension, configured as a pull-down menu 

on Lextran’s website.  

Figure 1: National Origin of Lextran Survey Respondents (RLS 2015) 

41

http://www.lextran.com/


Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

17 

Lextran translates vital documents into Spanish and Chinese and makes those documents 

available online and through customer service. Upon request, Lextran will make a reasonable 

effort to translate any document into any language. All route schedules and the Title VI 

complaint form are available on Lextran’s website in English, Spanish, and Chinese. 

TRAINING STAFF  

Lextran provides LEP-focused training to both coach operators through the Operations 

Department and to customer service staff through the Planning, Technology & Community 

Relations Department. LEP training for coach operators and customer service staff is 

conducted with each new hire and historically, tri-annually. An annual refresher was 

implemented in 2016 and will continue. 

Transportation dispatchers and roadside transportation supervisors will be briefed on best 

practices and procedures for LEP customer interaction during regularly occurring training or 

orientation for new employees.  

PROVIDING NOTICE TO LEP PERSONS 

Lextran informs LEP persons about the availability of language-based assistance through 

various media. Placard displays are posted on each bus, in Spanish, that indicate how to 

request LEP services. Lextran has placed announcements and information about LEP services 

in local newspapers in Spanish. Notifications are on display throughout Lextran’s Transit 

Center that provide information on how to request LEP service. LEP assistance placards are 

found on each customer service window at the Transit Center.     

MONITORING AND UPDATING THE LEP PLAN 

Lextran will routinely update this LEP plan to ensure effective engagement and equitable 

service to LEP customers. Each encounter between Lextran coach operators and LEP 

customers will be documented through daily operations reports. Requests for language 

services, such as translation of documents or other language assistance will also be recorded 

and analyzed for future improvement of this LEP plan. Use of Lextran’s third-party translation 

service will be collected, analyzed, and adjusted as needed.  

CHANNELS FOR LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE  

Customers needing language assistance can contact Lextran through three primary channels, 

through customer service, online through Lextran’s website, and directly to the Lextran Title VI 

Coordinator. 

CUSTOMER SERVICE  

Lextran’s downtown Transit Center is located at 220 Vine Street in Lexington. Currently, 

customer service staff are available at the Transit Center 7 days per week, from 6 AM to 6 PM 

42



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

18 

Monday through Friday and from 8 AM to 4 PM on Saturday and Sunday. Customers can reach 

a customer service representative at (859) 253-4636. 

Lextran’s administrative offices are located at 200 W. Loudon Avenue in Lexington and are 

open from Monday through Friday, 8 AM to 5 PM. 

WEBSITE  

Information about Lextran’s Title VI Program Plan and instructions for how to request further 

assistance can be found at www.lextran.com/about/titlevi. Title VI complaints can be emailed 

to title.vi.complaint@lextran.com for prompt assistance.  

MINORITY REPRESENTATION ON PLANNING AND ADVISORY BODIES 

There are no currently active transit-related, non-elected planning boards, advisory councils or 

committees, or similar committees that are selected by Lextran. For the duration of this Title VI 

Program Plan, Lextran shall not deny a person the opportunity to participate on a planning or 

advisory body on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.  

PROVIDING ASSISTANCE TO SUBRECIPIENTS 

Lextran does not have subrecipients that meet the reporting requirements of Title VI.  If and 

when Lextran does, Title VI requirements will be included in the contract language concerning 

compliance, operations, monitoring, and reporting. 

MONITORING SUBRECIPIENTS 

Lextran does not have subrecipients that meet the reporting requirements of Title VI.  If and 

when Lextran does, Title VI requirements will be included in the contract language concerning 

compliance, operations, monitoring and reporting. 

DETERMINATION OF SITE OR LOCATION OF FACILITIES  

There has been no eligible location of facilities relevant to Title 49 CFR Section 21.9(b)(3) for 

the triannual period prior to this Title VI Program Plan. There is no planned facilities project for 

the future duration of this Title VI Program Plan. If an eligible facilities project is initiated, 

Lextran will complete a Title VI equity analysis during the planning stages of any relevant 

project; give attention to other facilities with similar impacts in the area to determine 

cumulative adverse impacts; and determine the disparate impact on the basis of race, color, 

and national origin of the facility.  

REQUIREMENT TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INFORMATION UPON REQUEST  

Lextran agrees to provide additional information upon request to fulfil this requirement. 

Additional information is outlined on the website at: http://www.lextran.com/about/titlevi 

43

http://www.lextran.com/about/titlevi
mailto:title.vi.complaint@lextran.com
http://www.lextran.com/about/titlevi


Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

19 

REQUIREMENT TO SET SYSTEM SERVICE STANDARDS AND POLICIES  

Lextran has developed service standards that guide the planning and operation of fixed-route 

service in Fayette County. The fixed-route system was designed and is maintained with the 

following broad guidelines: 

• Routes shall be separated into functional categories to guide level of service and to 

match the route schedule with contextual land uses. 

• When possible, routes will be bi-directional in nature and will avoid large one-way loops. 

• Travel times and transfers will be considered between major origins and destinations. 

Individual routes in Lextran’s system are governed and monitored as one of three categories: 

core routes, circulator routes, and limited service routes. Each category of route shares similar 

operating characteristics and was planned to serve specific needs. Core routes are the 

originate from Lextran’s central downtown Transit Center and travel outward to suburban 

Lexington. Core routes are radial in nature and operate seven days per week. Circulator routes 

do not serve the Transit Center and are typically bi-directional loops in areas of high population 

and commercial density. Limited service routes fill the gaps created by Lexington’s hub-and-

spoke transportation network. Limited service routes are typically less frequent and are 

scheduled specifically to the attractions and destinations on each route. Lextran defines its 

service area as one-quarter of a mile from a fixed-route.  

SERVICE STANDARDS  

VEHICLE LOADS 

Loading standards for vehicles ensure that most passengers will have a seat for at least most 

of their trip. Load factors are calculated by dividing the maximum load by the number of seats 

on the vehicle. Lextran routes should average no more than a load factor of 1.2 during 

weekday peak periods and should average no more than a load factor of 1.0 during all other 

periods. Individual trips can exceed loading standards due to irregularly high demand. Load 

factors on individual trips should not exceed 1.2 for intervals greater than 10 minutes.  

44



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

20 

Vehicle Type 

Passenger Capacities 

Seated Standing Total 
Maximum Load 

Factor 

Cutaway 14 0 14 1.00 

29’ Standard Bus 18 12 30 1.67 

29’ Low Floor 28 25 53 1.89 

35’ Low Floor 32 28 60 1.88 

40’ Standard Bus 40 35 75 1.88 

40’ Low Floor 40 35 75 1.88 

VEHICLE HEADWAY 

Route headways are determined based on demand and operational capacity. Lextran aims for 

35-minute headways during peak period and 70-minute headways during non-peak periods for 

core routes. Headways for circulator routes are tailored to the time-of-year and location of the 

specific route. Headway on circulator routes near the University of Kentucky campus depend 

on UK’s academic calendar, 7-10 minutes during the fall and spring academic semesters. 

Limited service routes range in headway from 35 minutes during peak period to 70 minutes 

during non-peak service. Lextran aims to have no longer than 70-minute headway on any route 

during any day of the week.   

ON-TIME PERFORMANCE  

On-time performance is defined as an arrival no more than seven minutes late and a departure 

no more than one minute early. Lextran continuously monitors on-time performance and 

system results are published and posted as part of monthly performance reports covering all 

aspects of operations. For all functional route classifications, routes with on-time performance 

greater than 90 percent are considered in good standing. Increased operational analysis and 

observation will be conducted for routes that consistently fall below 80 percent on-time. 

Lextran’s long-term goal is for all routes to be above 95 percent on-time. 

Category Percent On-Time 

Good Greater than 90 percent 

Satisfactory Between 80 and 90 percent 

Unsatisfactory Less than 80 percent 

SERVICE AVAILABILITY  

Lextran operates routes primarily along major and minor arterials with some deviation along 

residential collector streets that are suitable for operation. Bus routing on limited-access 

45



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

21 

highways should be kept to a minimum and should only occur where no other feasible 

alternative exists. Lextran service coverage is defined as the area within 1/3 of a mile of each 

bus stop. To the extent feasible, Lextran will serve all major employers, hospitals, schools, and 

public housing within the Lexington urban area.  

HOURS OF OPERATION  

The hours of operation should be based on demand and relate to the route’s function. The 

maximum span of service is from 5:00 a.m. to 12:30 a.m. on weekdays and Saturdays, and 

from 5:00 a.m. to 9:30 p.m. on Sundays. 

SERVICE LEVELS  

Service levels are defined as peak service and off-peak service. Peak service is generally 

between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 9:00 a.m., and between 3:00 p.m. and 6:00 p.m.  Off-peak 

service is provided at all other times including the mid-day period between 9:00 a.m. and 3:00 

p.m. and in the evenings and weekends. While every effort is made to provide feasible 

coverage during off-peak periods, Lextran reserves the right to reduce service and routes 

because ridership is typically lower during off-peak periods.  

SERVICE POLICIES  

PASSENGER STOPS 

Lextran formally designates bus stops with signs to provide a safe environment for passenger 

boarding and alighting. Bus stops are located by the Planning, Technology & Community 

Relations Department and the Risk Management Department. Bus stops are installed by the 

Maintenance Department. Bus stops are located and installed following all local ordinances, 

state laws, and federal laws. The spacing of bus stops will be roughly 0.2 miles apart, with 

consideration of contextual land-use and pedestrian infrastructure.  

PASSENGER AMENITIES 

Bus stops with more than 25 boarding passengers per day will be identified as a potential 

location for a bus shelter. Bus stops with between 15 and 25 passengers per day will be 

identified as potential locations for passenger benches. Waste receptacles are included with 

shelters and benches. Passenger amenities will be considered at all major transfer locations.  

Location and provision of passenger amenities is subject to funding availability and right-of-

way considerations. Lextran will, to every extent feasible, provide passenger amenities at all 

locations that satisfy the above criteria.    

VEHICLE ASSIGNMENT  

Lextran assigns buses daily on a rotating basis so that buses are assigned to routes evenly. 

The following operational limitations guide bus assignments on certain routes: 

46



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

22 

• 40’ buses are required on the following routes due to load capacity: 

o Route 3 Tates Creek 

o Route 5 Nicholasville Road 

o Route 6 North Broadway 

o Route 7 North Limestone 

o Route 8 Versailles Road 

o Route 10 Hamburg Pavilion 

o Route 14 University of Kentucky Kroger Field 

o Route 15 Red Mile  

• Route 2 Georgetown Road requires a 35’ bus because of maneuverability on the route. 

• Fast-charge electric buses are assigned to routes that allow for the maximum number 

of electric vehicles in service while accommodating charging requirements with 

minimal impact on operations.  

  

47



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

23 

REQUIREMENT TO COLLECT AND REPORT DEMOGRAPHIC DATA  

  

48



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

24 

RLS Consultants was commissioned by Lextran in 2015 to produce a report titled Lextran 

Service & Fare Equity Analysis. The full report can be found on Lextran’s website at 

www.lextran.com/about/titlevi. In conducting their report, RLS collected responses from 1,549 

riders through intercept surveys. Those survey responses informed the report and the 

following graphics.  RLS found that “Lextran offers service to all populations, specifically 

including minority, non-minority, and low-income populations. This service is offered without 

regard to race, color, or national origin and is, therefore, in compliance with the Title VI and 

Environmental Justice regulations.” 

DEMOGRAPHIC RIDERSHIP AND TRAVEL PATTERNS  

Demographic ridership and travel pattern data was also collected by RLS. About 44 percent of 

the survey responses came from African Americans, which represented the largest plurality of 

the survey. 

 

Figure 2: Demographic Ridership (RLS 2015) 

The majority of Lextran riders use the fixed-route service for commuting to and from work. 

About 71 percent of survey responses indicated that Lextran riders used service daily. More 

than half of minority and non-minority riders cited work as their primary trip purpose.  

Hispanic 4% Asian 2%

Native American Indian 4%

Multiple Race 6%

Other 1%

White 39%

African American
44%

49

http://www.lextran.com/about/titlevi


Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

25 

 

Figure 3: Trip Purpose (RLS 2015) 

A larger share of minority riders indicated a travel time of less than 45 minutes than non-

minority riders, while a larger share of non-minority riders indicated a travel time of greater 

than 60 minutes than minority riders.  

 
Figure 4: Trip Time (RLS 2015) 

50



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

26 

REQUIREMENT TO MONITOR TRANSIT SERVICE  

ROUTE MONITORING PROGRAM  

Lextran regularly evaluates the performance of individual routes by route functional 

classifications. Route performance includes ridership as well as more detailed measures of 

efficiency and effectiveness. Particular attention is paid to the number of passengers per hour, 

the number of passengers per mile, the farebox recovery ratio, and the net cost per passenger. 

Routes that consistently score as unsatisfactory will be further evaluated for ways to improve 

operational efficiency and effectiveness.  

 
Table 6: Lextran Service Standards by Route Functional Classification 

System and route monitoring are conducted monthly and included in Lextran’s Board of 

Directors meeting packets, which are available publicly at www.lextran.com.  

Metric Route Functional Classification 

Passengers per Revenue Hour Core Circulator Limited 

Good More than 22 More than 15 More than 10 

Satisfactory Between 11 - 22 Between 7 - 15 Between 4 - 10 

Unsatisfactory Less than 11 Less than 7 Less than 4 

Passengers per Revenue Mile Core Circulator Limited 

Good More than 1.5 More than 1.2 More than 1 

Satisfactory Between 0.7 - 1.5 Between 0.4 - 1.2 Between 0.3 - 1 

Unsatisfactory Less than 0.7 Less than 0.4 Less than 0.3 

Farebox Recovery Ratio Core Circulator Limited 

Good More than 15% More than 10% More than 8% 

Satisfactory Between 11 - 15% Between 4 - 10% Between 4 - 8% 

Unsatisfactory Less than 11% Less than 4% Less than 4% 

Net Cost per Passenger Core Circulator Limited 

Good Below Average Below Average Below Average 

Satisfactory Equal to or Above Equal to or Above Equal to or Above 

Unsatisfactory 1 Std. Dev. Above 1 Std. Dev. Above 1 Std. Dev. Above 

51

http://www.lextran.com/


Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

27 

  

52



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

28 

  

53



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

29 

  

54



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

30 

REQUIREMENT TO EVALUATE SERVICE AND FARE CHANGES  

All proposed service changes are subject to equity analyses. Lextran conducts equity analyses 

on service change ideas to help guide those ideas into becoming proposed service changes. 

When proposed service changes are deemed significant to be major service changes, the 

major service change policy goes into effect.  

MAJOR SERVICE CHANGE POLICY 

Any service change that impacts 25 percent of the revenue service miles or hours of a route is 

defined as a major service change. A proposed major service change requires a service equity 

analysis, including a disparate impact analysis and a disproportionate burden analysis.  

Any proposed fare increase is considered a major service change and must also undergo a 

service equity analysis, including a disparate impact analysis and a disproportionate burden 

analysis.  

DISPARATE IMPACT POLICY 

Any and all proposed major service changes must include a disparate impact analysis. A 

disparate impact analysis determines whether members of a race, color, or national origin are 

affected more than members of another race, color, or national origin. A disparate impact 

occurs when a major service change impacts a minority population more than plus or minus 

20 percent of the non-minority population.  

DISPROPORTIONATE BURDEN POLICY 

Any and all proposed major service changes must include a disproportionate burden analysis. 

A disproportionate burden analysis determines whether members of a low-income group are 

affected more than the rest of the population. A disproportionate burden occurs when a major 

service change impacts a low-income group more than plus or minus 20 percent of the non-

low-income population.  

FINDING A DISPARATE IMPACT OR DISPROPORTIONATE BURDEN 

It is Lextran’s policy to avoid, minimize, and mitigate any service changes that are found to be 

in violation of the disparate impact or disproportionate burden policies. Any proposed service 

change that violates the disparate impact or disproportionate burden policies will be revised 

and reevaluated to determine equitable alternatives. Lextran may proceed with a major service 

change that causes a disparate impact or disproportionate burden if there is substantial 

legitimate justification for the proposed service change and there are no alternatives that 

would decrease the disparate impact or disproportionate burden while accomplishing the 

goals of the service change.  

55



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

31 

CONDUCTING A DISPARATE IMPACT OR DISPROPORTIONATE BURDEN ANALYSIS 

To determine a disparate impact or disproportionate burden, Lextran will follow guidelines set 

forth in FTA Circular 4702.1B using data from the United States Census Bureau and ridership 

data. Data analysis will be conducted in a geographic information systems platform and 

reported through maps and tables.  

DEFINITIONS OF MINORITY POPULATIONS 

For the purposes of disparate impact and disproportionate burden, Lextran follows the FTA 

Circular 4702.1B in defining minority populations. Low-income populations follow the poverty 

guidelines set forth by the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS). The low-income 

threshold is 150 percent of the poverty guideline established by the DHHS.  

SERVICE EXPANSION POLICY 

Expansion of the Lextran fixed-route system can stem from the following: 

• Lextran Comprehensive Operations Analysis, 

• Lexington Area Metropolitan Planning Organization Long Range Transportation Plan, 

• Requests for service request, 

• New generator locations, origins, and destinations.  

ON-GOING EVALUATION  

In addition to the monthly review of individual routes, an annual comprehensive system review 

is conducted to identify trends in route performance. Routes that perform exceptionally or 

poorly are then reviewed in depth to determine action items to be considered that might 

include route expansion, consolidation, or alteration. Other actions can be taken to improve an 

underperforming route, such as increased and targeted marketing or minor service tweaks.   

  

56



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

32 

APPENDIX A – BOARD RESOLUTION APPROVING THE TITLE VI PROGRAM 

PLAN 

  

57



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

33 

APPENDIX B – CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSURANCES 

58



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

34 

 

59



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

35 

APPENDIX C – TITLE VI COMPLAINT FORM-ENGLISH, SPANISH, AND CHINESE 

60



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

36 
61



Lextran _ID_1104 – Title VI Triennial Program Plan 

37 
62



Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 

LEXTRAN MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT – AUGUST 2019 

We serve people and our community with mobility solutions. 
July was the first month of the new fiscal year 2020. On July 9th, our Million Mile safe driving award 
winners were recognized by Mayor Linda Gorton at the Urban County Council meeting. General 
Manager Carrie Butler represented Lextran on Capitol Hill with the Commerce Lexington annual fly-in. 
The public comment process was opened and meetings were held for the Title VI Program Plan update. 

Performance Indicator Fixed Route System Paratransit (Wheels) 

System Production This 
Month FY20 YTD FY19 YTD This 

Month FY20 YTD FY19 YTD 

Total Ridership 274,617 274,617 271,719 19,753 19,753 17,797 
Weekday Ridership 232,241 232,241 228,982 16,674 16,674 14,783 
Saturday Ridership 22,585 22,585 21,803 1,430 1,430 1,289 
Sunday Ridership 15,579 15,579 16,183 1,350 1,350 1,379 
Holiday Ridership 4,212 4,212 4,751 299 299 346 

Total Revenue Miles 147,713 147,713 141,994 141,142 141,142 135,869 
Total Revenue Hours 15,231 15,231 15,355 11,251 11,251 10,794 
Trips per Mile 1.86 1.86 1.91 0.14 0.14 0.13 
Trips per Hour 18.03 18.03 17.70 1.76 1.76 1.65 

• Fixed-route ridership was slightly higher than July of 2018
• Paratransit ridership in July 2019 increased 11% from July 2018

DEMONSTRATE VALUE TO THE COMMUNITY 

0
100,000
200,000
300,000
400,000
500,000

Fixed Route System Ridership

0
5,000

10,000
15,000
20,000
25,000

Paratransit (Wheels) Ridership

62

63



Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 

Community Involvement 
• “How to Ride” – YMCA Power Scholars – July 2
• Bus Wrap Design Contest Art Event – Art+Play Studio– July 2
• July 4th Parade – July 4
• Info Table – Sullivan University – July 9
• Bluegrass Greensource Environmental Teacher’s Academy – July 10
• “How to Ride” – YMCA Power Scholars – July 11
• First Year Orientation – BCTC Newtown – July 12
• Travel Training – Eastern State Rehab Program – July 18
• “How to Ride” – Kentucky Refugee Ministries – July 19
• “How to Ride” – Eastern Ave Sober Living – July 22
• Winburn Public Safety Day – One Lexington – July 24
• Title VI Public Meeting – July 30
• Title VI Public Meeting – July 31

Meetings and Updates    
In July, Lextran representatives participated in the following (external) meetings: 

• Fayette County Public Schools Partnership Opportunities – July 2
• Meeting with Fayette County PVA – July 3
• Census 2020 – Community Connectors Sub-Committee – July 3
• Commission for People with Disabilities – July 8
• Census 2020 – Complete Count Committee – July 10
• Transportation Technical Coordinating Committee – July 10
• Via Creative Board Meeting – July 11
• Federal Transit Administration – July 15
• Town Branch/Transit Center Project Meeting – July 18
• Paratransit Quarterly Meeting – July 19
• Transportation Work Team Meeting – July 29
• One Lexington Meeting – July 29
• Transportation Policy Committee – July 31

Lextran in the Media 
• July 5, 2019 – Upcoming Crosswalk Construction to Impact Traffic, Bus Service

https://uknow.uky.edu/campus-news/upcoming-crosswalk-construction-impact-traffic-bus-
service

• July 8, 2019 – Construction of new raised crosswalks to impact traffic on UK’s campus
https://www.wkyt.com/content/news/Construction-of-new-raised-crosswalks-to-impact-
traffic-on-UKs-campus-512404431.html

• July 9, 2019 – City of Lexington Issues Heat Advisory
https://www.wtvq.com/2019/07/09/city-lexington-issues-heat-advisory/

• July 18, 2019 – Lexington offers cooling centers, cuts pool fees to help residents in heat wave

64

https://uknow.uky.edu/campus-news/upcoming-crosswalk-construction-impact-traffic-bus-service
https://uknow.uky.edu/campus-news/upcoming-crosswalk-construction-impact-traffic-bus-service
https://www.wkyt.com/content/news/Construction-of-new-raised-crosswalks-to-impact-traffic-on-UKs-campus-512404431.html
https://www.wkyt.com/content/news/Construction-of-new-raised-crosswalks-to-impact-traffic-on-UKs-campus-512404431.html
https://www.wtvq.com/2019/07/09/city-lexington-issues-heat-advisory/


Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 

https://www.kentucky.com/news/local/counties/fayette-county/article232822767.html 
• July 18, 2019 – Phase III heat advisory issued in Lexington

https://www.lex18.com/phase-ii-heat-advisory-issued-in-lexington
• July 18, 2019 – Here’s how Lexington is combating this week’s heat wave

https://www.wkyt.com/content/news/High-temperatures-cause-heat-alert-in-Lexington-
512878501.html

• July 20, 2019 – Lexington opens cooling centers, public pool entry half-price during weekend
heat
https://www.wkyt.com/content/news/Lexington-cooling-centers-open-half-price-at-public-
pools-as-temperatures-soar-over-90s-512983711.html

• July 25, 2019 – This busy downtown Lexington intersection will be closed this weekend. How
to avoid it.
https://www.kentucky.com/news/local/counties/fayette-county/article233109361.html

65

https://www.kentucky.com/news/local/counties/fayette-county/article232822767.html
https://www.lex18.com/phase-ii-heat-advisory-issued-in-lexington
https://www.wkyt.com/content/news/High-temperatures-cause-heat-alert-in-Lexington-512878501.html
https://www.wkyt.com/content/news/High-temperatures-cause-heat-alert-in-Lexington-512878501.html
https://www.wkyt.com/content/news/Lexington-cooling-centers-open-half-price-at-public-pools-as-temperatures-soar-over-90s-512983711.html
https://www.wkyt.com/content/news/Lexington-cooling-centers-open-half-price-at-public-pools-as-temperatures-soar-over-90s-512983711.html
https://www.kentucky.com/news/local/counties/fayette-county/article233109361.html


Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 

Performance 
Indicator Fixed Route System Paratransit (Wheels) 

Service Quality This Month FY20 YTD FY19 YTD This Month FY20 YTD FY19 YTD 
On-Time 
Performance 92.10% 92.10% 91.60% 90.43% 0.00% 91.52% 

Farebox Recovery 6.71% 6.71% 6.43% N/A N/A N/A 
Operating Expenses  $ 1,682,541  $ 1,682,541  $ 1,717,686 $432,687 $432,687 $407,890 

Per Mile $3.38 $3.38 $3.65 N/A N/A N/A 
Per Hour $77.69 $77.69 $78.11 N/A N/A N/A 

Customer Service This Month FY20 YTD FY19 YTD This Month FY20 YTD FY19 YTD 
Customer Feedback 
Totals per 100k 
Trips 

27.08 27.08 32.40 14.88 14.88 17.00 

Commendations 2.03 2.03 0.70 2.13 2.13 0.71 
Discourtesy 7.45 7.45 9.16 6.38 6.38 7.79 
Late or Early 4.74 4.74 4.23 2.13 2.13 2.83 
Safety 4.74 4.74 1.93 4.25 4.35 5.87 
Passed Boarding 4.06 4.06 7.04 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Information and 
Service Requests 2.03 2.03 2.11 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Other 2.03 2.03 6.34 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Call Length 1:11 1:11 1:14 1:09 1:09 1:12 
Calls into the IVR 38,875 38,875 46,278 N/A N/A N/A 
Time to Abandon 0:30 0:30 0:09 0:48 0:48 1:17 

• Overall on-time performance for July exceeded the system-wide target of 90%, for both fixed
route and paratransit service.

• Fixed route on-time performance increased slightly over the same time last year.
• The number of commendations increased compared to the same time last year, while the

number of comments related to passed boardings and discourteousness decreased.

DELIVER A HIGH-QUALITY PRODUCT 

66



Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 

Performance Indicator Fixed Route System Paratransit (Wheels) 

Safety This 
Month 

FY20 
YTD 

FY19 
YTD 

This 
Month 

FY20 
YTD 

FY19 
YTD 

Preventable Accidents per 100,000 miles 2.03 2.03 0.00 1.22 1.22 1.89 
Injury Frequency Rate 0.00 0.00 15.03 N/A N/A N/A 
Days with No Preventable Accidents 28 28 0 29 29 28 
Days of Lost Time 39 39 0 N/A N/A N/A 
Workers Compensation Claims 0 0 2 N/A N/A N/A 

• The July shop inspection revealed only one violation, which was corrected the following day.
This particular finding was not an issue in the previous month.

Performance Indicator Fixed Route System 
Maintenance This Month FY20 YTD FY19 YTD 
Miles between Road Calls 7,386 7,386 6,454 
Percent of Preventive Maintenance Inspections on 
Schedule 100% 100% 100% 

• The Maintenance department surpassed 365 days without an OSHA-reportable lost time
workplace injury.

• There were 41 preventive maintenance inspections completed on revenue & non-revenue
vehicles.

Performance Indicator Fixed Route System 
Hiring and Recruiting This Month Interviews New Hires 
Open Positions 10 1 0 

Operations 7 0 0 
Maintenance 0 0 0 
Administration 3 1 0 

Turnover Rate 3.40% 

MANAGE AND SUSTAIN RESOURCES 

67



Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 

Performance Indicator Fixed Route System 
Training Activities This Month FY20 YTD 
Smith System Defensive Driving Annual Refresher 21 21 
Post-Accident Remedial Training 2 2 
Return to Work Training 5 5 
Coaching Sessions 4 4 

Procurement Expected Publish 
Date 

Pre-Proposal 
Conference Date 

Proposal Due 
Date 

Expected 
Resolution 

On-Call Architectural and 
Engineering Services 

May 6, 2019 May 17, 2019 June 19, 2019 September 2019 

Technology Consultant May 20, 2019 June 6, 2019 June 27, 2019 August 2019 
Office 365 Migration June 3, 2019 June 20, 2019 July 18, 2019 August 2019 

Parking Lot Restriping July 22, 2019 August 2, 2019 
August 22, 

2019 
September 2019 

Fuel July 22, 2019 August 8, 2019 
August 29, 

2019 
September 2019 

Customer Survey In Development TBD TBD TBD 

68



Current Last
Year-To-Date Year-to-Date

Assets
Current assets

Operating Cash $9,700,795 $9,954,453
Project Loan Account $1,145,044 $1,145,044
Accounts receivable $4,851,832 $4,861,647
Inventory $638,477 $484,969
Net pension asset $2,322,984 $1,063,260
Work in process $33,509 $40,326
Prepaid $1,009,122 $1,023,465

Total Current Assets $19,701,764 $18,573,165

Long term note - Lextran Foundation Inc. $8,355,000 $8,355,000

Net capital and related assets $25,452,700 $28,760,758

Total Assets $53,509,464 $55,688,923

Liabilities 
Current liabilities

Accounts payable $4,000,448 $2,983,347
Payroll liabilities $731,369 $695,152
Short term note - Fifth Third Bank $941,698 $913,719

Total Current Liabilities $5,673,516 $4,592,218

Long term note - Fifth Third Bank $4,825,113 $5,766,811

Net Position $43,010,835 $45,329,894

Total Liabilities and Net Position $53,509,464 $55,688,923

BALANCE SHEET
as of July 31, 2019

Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 

DRAFT

69



FY 2019
Revenues Actual Budget Variance Actual

Property taxes $0 $0 $0 $0
Passenger revenue $113,164 $112,520 $644 $115,348
Federal funds $443,844 $391,287 $52,557 $424,875
State funds $0 $0 $0 $0
Advertising revenue $0 $0 $0 $260,000
Other revenue $208,386 $201,492 $6,893 $202,792

Total Revenues $765,393 $705,299 $60,094 $1,003,015

Expenses
Wages $764,694 $772,655 ($7,961) $683,277
Fringe benefits $452,194 $465,613 ($13,419) $464,226
Professional services $58,969 $134,435 ($75,466) $113,053
Materials and supplies $86,821 $93,000 ($6,179) $91,498
Fuel-Diesel $76,717 $89,274 ($12,557) $78,677
Fuel-Other $17,239 $24,083 ($6,844) $24,699
Utilities - Facilities $25,172 $22,891 $2,281 $16,412
Utilities - Electric Bus $7,488 $6,792 $696 $7,886
Insurance $58,293 $61,500 ($3,207) $57,741
Fuel taxes $25,460 $17,833 $7,627 $16,965
Paratransit Expenses $496,346 $483,503 $12,843 $461,616
Vanpool Expenses $2,100 $2,700 ($600) $2,400
Dues and subscriptions $1,275 $3,167 ($1,892) $27,945
Travel, training and meetings $4,328 $11,354 ($7,026) $5,598
Media advertising $31,834 $17,917 $13,917 $10,574
Miscellaneous $750 $5,417 ($4,667) $4,016
Interest Expense $14,620 $15,868 ($1,248) $16,913
Leases and rentals $68,818 $67,734 $1,084 $68,652
Depreciation $283,133 $283,133 $0 $327,415

Total Expenses $2,476,250 $2,578,867 ($102,618) $2,479,563

Change in Net Position ($1,710,856) ($1,873,568) $162,712 ($1,476,548)

Notes:  
Average price of diesel fuel for FY2020 - $1.98; Latest price of diesel fuel (August 2, 2019) - $1.93
Latest price of CNG diesel gallon equivalent - $1.30

Lextran Board of Directors Meeting – August 2019 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION 
July 2019
FY 2020

DRAFT

70


	BP08.21.19
	01 Table of Contents August 21 Meeting
	BP08.21.19
	02 Agenda August 21 Meeting
	03 Minutes from July 17 Meeting
	04 Board Resolution - 2019-17 - Office 365 Migration
	05 Board Resolution - 2019-18 - Technology Consulting Services
	07 Board Resolution - 2019-19 - Extension of Management Contract
	Title VI Board Meeting take II
	Lextran Title VI 2019 Program Plan August Board Meeting


	Lextran Monthly Performance Report - August Draft
	08 Financial Statement July 2019 - page 1
	09 Financial Statement July 2019 - page 2



